
From: Steve Koper
To: Luxhoj, Cindy; Erin Engman
Cc: Bateschell, Miranda
Subject: RE: RE: Basalt Creek Industrial Code Project
Date: Tuesday, January 17, 2023 12:17:30 PM
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Hi Cindy,
 
Please see below for responses. We appreciate your comments; we’ll share them with our Planning
Commission and City Council. We plan to meet with our City Council at the end of February. We’d be
happy to set up a meeting to provide you with an update on the project before we go through to
adoption if there’s interest in that.
 
Best,
 
-Steve
 

Steve Koper, AICP

Assistant Community Development Director
City of Tualatin | Planning Division
503.691.3028 | www.tualatinoregon.gov
 
 

From: Luxhoj, Cindy <luxhoj@ci.wilsonville.or.us> 
Sent: Tuesday, January 17, 2023 10:58 AM
To: Erin Engman <eengman@tualatin.gov>
Cc: Steve Koper <skoper@tualatin.gov>; Bateschell, Miranda <bateschell@ci.wilsonville.or.us>
Subject: RE: RE: Basalt Creek Industrial Code Project
 
Hi Erin,
 
I hope you’re year is off to a great start!
 
Thank you for sending the announcement about the Planning Commission meeting this Thursday
about the Basalt Creek Employment (BCE) Zoning District. Will the meeting be recorded and
available for viewing afterward? I’m on vacation this Thursday and Friday, but would like to watch
the recording next week if possible.
 
After the open house last July, I sent you a few questions, which I’ve listed below. You were going to
think about them and get back to me, but I don’t recall hearing from you. I looked through the
Planning Commission packet and made some notes/revisions to my questions, but I’d appreciate
confirmation from you or any additional information you think would be helpful:

·         Have you considered a form-based code for this area, such as Wilsonville has in the Coffee
Creek Industrial Area, as a means to making the area more human scale and
pedestrian/bicyclist friendly?
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o   Notes:
§  The scenarios appear use-based rather than form-based. Is this accurate?
RESPONSE: Yes.
§  It looks as though commercial and retail uses, as well as a mobile food unit, are

being allowed on SW Grahams Ferry Road. Is this correct? Was this
anticipated in the Basalt Creek Concept Plan for this area? If not, how are
changes in trip generation/transportation impact being addressed?

RESPONSE: Employment dense uses were envisioned in the Concept Plan. The
MP zoning code, as applied, has limits on commercial uses greater than what is
allowed under Metro’s Title 4 for employment areas. The draft code expands the
code to allow commercial uses up to those limits, but allows only some of those
uses in the Grahams Ferry Corridor.

·         What about a combination of zones, with lower intensity
manufacturing/warehousing/distribution next to residential areas and more intense use to
the south and west near the Basalt Creek Parkway?

o   Notes:
§  It doesn’t appear this is the case; however, it looks like landscaping and

variation in setbacks are used to provide buffering and separation. Is this
accurate or is there gradation in intensity that I’m not seeing?

RESPONSE: Yes.
·         Where in the analysis is trip generation considered? Manufacturing Park was the assumed

use with 725 trips (7.80 trips per acre; Table 5 of the BC Concept Plan). If a different zone is
applied to this area, how will that affect trip generation and will Tualatin still be within their
assumed portion of trips?

o   Notes:
§  I see that a Transportation Planning Rule Evaluation was completed in

November 2022, and there is mention of the Transportation Refinement Plan
(on page 3) in the evaluation report. However, I don’t see discussion of how a
change to the new zoning will affect the trip calculation/analysis in the
Transportation Refinement Plan. Could you provide more information about
this?

RESPONSE: The 2012 Transportation Refinement Plan was part of the Concept
Plan. The Concept Plan identified zoning designations that would apply in the
Basalt Creek Planning Area. The TPR analysis for the Comprehensive Plan
Amendments was based on planning horizon for allowed uses for the zoning
designations identified in the Concept Plan. The TPR analysis for this project will
compare reasonable worst case development scenarios for the planning horizon
for the existing MP zone with reasonable worst case development scenarios for
the planning horizon for the proposed Basalt Creek Employment (BCE) zone. Our
draft analysis concludes that the proposed BCE zone would have a slight
reduction in total trips over the planning horizon. I don’t know what the
numbers in Table 5 refer to but they don’t seem to represent the planning
period given they are so small. For example, the multifamily zoning (RH) which
allows 25 du/ac and was recently approved for 116 units says 42 trips, that is
below the built year daily PM peak hour trips for that use…



 
I’m still interested in your responses.
 
Please let me know if you have questions or need clarification.
 
Thangs again,
 
Cindy Luxhoj AICP
Associate Planner
City of Wilsonville
 
503.570.1572
luxhoj@ci.wilsonville.or.us
www.ci.wilsonville.or.us
Facebook.com/CityofWilsonville

29799 SW Town Center Loop East, Wilsonville, OR 97070
 
The Community Development Department has implemented a new online application and payment system. You
can now apply and pay for most applications online. You can register for and access the new system for
application and payment at https://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/Online-Portal. If there are additional questions, please
reach out to City staff.  
 
Disclosure Notice: Messages to and from this e-mail address may be subject to the Oregon Public Records Law.
 

From: Luxhoj, Cindy <luxhoj@ci.wilsonville.or.us> 
Sent: Thursday, July 28, 2022 5:00 PM
To: eengman@tualatin.gov
Cc: skoper@tualatin.gov; Bateschell, Miranda <bateschell@ci.wilsonville.or.us>
Subject: RE: Basalt Creek Industrial Code Project
 
Hi Erin,
Here are some links to Coffee Creek standards:

· Planned Development Industrial – Regionally Significant Industrial Area Zone is Section 4.135.5
of the Code

· Coffee Creek Industrial Design Overlay District is Section 4.134 of the Code
· Coffee Creek Industrial Design Overlay District Pattern Book
· Web page with other Final Adoption Documents for the Coffee Creek Industrial Area Form-

Based Code
There are two approved projects in the Coffee Creek DOD and one more in completeness review.
Here are links to the project pages for the two approved projects:

· Black Creek Group Industrial Project
· Coffee Creek Logistics Center

Please let me know if you have questions or I can provide any other information.
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Thanks,
Cindy Luxhoj AICP
Associate Planner
City of Wilsonville
503.570.1572
luxhoj@ci.wilsonville.or.us
www.ci.wilsonville.or.us
Facebook.com/CityofWilsonville

29799 SW Town Center Loop East, Wilsonville, OR 97070
The Community Development Department has implemented a new online application and payment
system. You can now apply and pay for most applications online. You can register for and access the
new system for application and payment at https://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/Online-Portal. If there
are additional questions, please reach out to City staff.
Disclosure Notice: Messages to and from this e-mail address may be subject to the Oregon Public
Records Law.

From: Erin Engman 
Sent: Thursday, July 28, 2022 4:21 PM
To: Luxhoj, Cindy 
Cc: Steve Koper 
Subject: RE: Basalt Creek Industrial Code Project

[This email originated outside of the City of Wilsonville]

Hi Cindy-
It was good to see you at the open house last night! And thanks for reaching out with your
questions, which I have added to our comment record.
I’d like to spend some time on your questions, and will follow up with you soon. I’ll also take a look at
the Coffee Creek area that you mentioned. Do you have particular form-based standards that have
worked well or developed examples to share?
I’m also happy to set up a follow-up conversation. I hope your summer is going well.
Erin Engman

Senior Planner
City of Tualatin | Planning Division
503.691.3024 | www.tualatinoregon.gov

From: Luxhoj, Cindy <luxhoj@ci.wilsonville.or.us> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 27, 2022 6:36 PM
To: Erin Engman <eengman@tualatin.gov>
Subject: Basalt Creek Industrial Code Project
Hi Erin,
I’m following up on tonight’s open house.
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I had some questions, but hesitated to ask. I thought they might be too specific or technical for the
audience and that it would be best to email you directly.
Here are some that came to mind during the presentation:

· Have you considered a form-based code for this area, such as Wilsonville has in the Coffee
Creek Industrial Area, as a means to making the area more human scale and
pedestrian/bicyclist friendly?

· What about a combination of zones, with lower intensity
manufacturing/warehousing/distribution next to residential areas and more intense use to
the south and west near the Basalt Creek Parkway?

· Where in the analysis is trip generation considered? Manufacturing Park was the assumed use
with 725 trips (7.80 trips per acre; Table 5 of the BC Concept Plan). If a different zone is
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
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From: Tim N.
To: Ext - Planning
Subject: Follow up - Planning Commission Meeting 1/19/23
Date: Thursday, January 19, 2023 8:33:53 PM

Hello, 

I just wanted to write and thank the planning commission for the thoughtful considerations for
the Basalt Creek Employment zone. I greatly appreciated the discussions regarding the pros
and cons of the potential scenarios. 

To represent the concerns of the current Byrom CIO residents, the main concerns are traffic,
noise, and pollution. Traffic concerns could be partially alleviated by road enhancement
projects being completed at a more rapid timeline than proposed in the Basalt Creek Master
Plan. When considering industrial traffic, there is also additional concern on the quality of our
roads. With more frequent heavy truck traffic, it will be important for the city to also consider
the increased cost and frequency of road upkeep and repaving.  Regarding noise and pollution,
I believe residents will minimally impacted SO LONG AS the final decision sets high
standards for outdoor noise, environmental standards, light pollution, the designation of heavy
or light industrial does not matter.I believe it was referenced that LAM Research park was
created with above-the-norm environmental and noise standards, and that sounds like a great
model to follow. I also believe residents would be in great support of requirements that
ensured all manufacturing occurred in an enclosed building, to further effectively manage
environmental and noise impacts. In terms of environment, as Tualatin is the City of Trees, I
believe residents would strongly support the comments regarding having 60 - 85 foot
landscaped greenspace setbacks and quality fencing, especially if these greenspaces included
requirements for heavy vegetation and tree plantings, as well as sidewalk space and trails. 

In terms of what would seem to be of best benefit to Tualatin, manufacturing space seems
more desirable than warehouse space. Ideal manufacturing employers stand a greater chance at
higher numbers of employees, compensated at a rate that affords them to also become
comfortable as residents of Tualatin. I believe ideally, this plan should encourage individuals
who want to work, and live, in Tualatin.

Overall, scenario A or 1A seem ideal for current and future residents, possibly scenario B with
modifications, so long as the above thoughts are incorporated.

Lastly, I would like to reiterate my comments on adding more commercial space into the
basalt creek master plan. To be of the greatest benefit to current residents, new residents, and
new employees in the Basalt Creek Employment Zone, the plan needs to incorporate
commercial space. All these individuals would benefit from a grocery and restaurants locally,
otherwise they would need to commute. I strongly believe in creating local, walkable
communities, and incorporating commercial space, as recommended by city council last fall,
would greatly enhance the quality of life of residents and employees, and could help attract
employers to the area. 

Again, I greatly appreciated the thoughtful discussion. I appreciated the planning commission
expressing awareness of the concerns of residents, and I look forward to further discussion
with the planning commission!

mailto:timneary@gmail.com
mailto:Planning@tualatin.gov


-Tim Neary
Byrom CIO Interim President



From: G Lucini
To: Erin Engman; Council; Frank Bubenik; Maria Reyes; Christen Sacco; Bridget Brooks; Cyndy Hillier; Octavio

Gonzalez; Valerie Pratt; Ext - Planning
Subject: PROPOSED CHANGES TO BASALT CREEK EMPLOYMENT ZONING DISTRICT PTA 22-0001 AND PMA 22-0001
Date: Saturday, January 21, 2023 2:42:30 PM

DATE 1-21-2023                                                                  FOR THE PUBLIC RECORDTO:

RE: Tualatin Planning Commission Meeting 1-19-2023 Agenda Item:
CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED CHANGES TO BASALT CREEK EMPLOYMENT
ZONING DISTRICT  
PTA 22-0001 AND PMA 22-0001

 
The need for thoughtful, well-planned development in the Basalt Creek Area should be the
primary concern of the City of Tualatin to obtain long term success for the City, local
communities, and for the provision of quality of life to all citizens.  The Land Use Process
should be transparent, should be based upon facts, and the municipality should seek
engagement of all Citizens in all phases as part of Citizen Involvement in proposing a major
Land Use Change impacting significantly large numbers of acres and various communities.

1.      A Land Use Planning process concern became apparent during the Tualatin
Planning Commission Meeting (TPC) on 1-19-23 regarding Commission’s
recommendations to be submitted to the City Council.  During the Public Meeting of
the TPC, despite the efforts of the Commission Chair, the Commission members were
unable to successfully generate a clearly stated recommendation to submit to the
Tualatin City Council regarding the various proposed Code changes for the Basalt Creek
Area. The Chair commented he would call each member after the meeting to determine
the recommendation the Commission would forward to the City Council- “if it is legal”. 

A clearly stated recommendation from the Commission to be presented to the City
Council- was not proposed / voted upon prior to the closing of the agenda item
during this Public Meeting of the Planning Commission.  Yet it appears the Planning
Commission’s recommendations on the proposed Land Use changes are intended to
be presented to the City Council on 2-27-23. 

These actions raise significant concerns regarding this decision-making process,
Public Transparency, and determination of the recommendations of the Planning
Commission to be forwarded to the City Council for the Council’s consideration and
guidance-being conducted outside of a Public Meeting.

It should be noted, the City Council will be the Decision-Making Body regarding the
adoption of any of the proposals, and the Planning Commissions recommendations
are an integral part in the direction and ultimate outcome in this policy making
process.  

2.      There are substantial questions as to the need for immediate Land Use Actions, or
zoning changes to be taken to jumpstart economic stimulus and development in the
Basalt Creek Area due to existing conditions.

The City of Tualatin has known of the difficulties for industrial development within the
Basalt Creek Area for many years.  It should not be a surprise that development within
the Basalt Creek industrial area would be a relatively slow process.

·        The zoning designations identified in the Basalt Creek Concept Plan were
extensively debated for years prior to adoption.  The zoning designations adopted
during the Basalt Creek Concept Planning- were not “aspirational” as stated by City
staff and also stated on a City slide presentation during the 1-19-23 Planning
Commission Meeting. The zoning designations adopted as part of the Basalt Creek
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Concept Plan and restated in the City of Tualatin Basalt Creek Comprehensive Plan
are legally binding Land Use Planning Documents.

·        The City has had knowledge for many years of multiple constraints and
limitations for development in the Basalt Creek Area as identified in the Basalt Creek
Concept Plan.  In addition, during the City of Tualatin Basalt Creek Concept Planning
process and adoption, multiple property owners provided testimony to the City of
Tualatin as to the constraints and limitations of industrial development within the
Basalt Creek Area would delay development in the Basalt Creek Area, and
consequently requested the “Tualatin Sub Area” be zoned for residential.  The City of
Tualatin even brought these issues to a Metro Hearing.

3.      Statements expressed on 1-19-23 about the financial impact to the Basalt Creek
Urban Renewal Bond --if the proposed Land Use changes are not enacted--should be
questioned.

·        The City of Tualatin’s SW Basalt Creek SW Industrial Urban Renewal Bond is a 30-
year bond.  The bond is less than 2 years into the 30-year life of the bond. 

·        During the drafting of this Urban Renewal Bond, when questioned by the Basalt
Creek Urban Renewal Bond Task Force, the City staff responded that the forecasting
for economic success of the bond did include assessments of impacts occurring from
economic and business changes during 2019 to 2022.

·        When drafting the Urban Renewal Bond for the Southwest and Basalt Creek
Area, the City was provided information that development may not be early or rapid
in the Basalt Creek Area.  The City’s Basalt Creek Urban Renewal Bond Task Force
identified multiple factors which may hamper development in the Basalt Creek Area
including:

a.      Basalt Creek geology, topography would be difficult and would increase
construction costs.

b.      Basalt Creek Area lacks proximity to existing City infrastructure and
would be dependent on development and connectivity from the north.

c.      Development in the southern portion of the Basalt Creek Area by the
City of Wilsonville would generate from the south and may be later to
develop along their northern border with Tualatin.

d.      The Task Force also discussed the City’s lack of an adopted State
mandated Stormwater Management Plan (SWMP) for the Basalt Creek Area.
A well written SWMP is used as a significant part of Land Use Planning and
development to ensure the effective provision of this Public Service in a
timely manner (OAR 660-011-0000).   Yet, the City has not yet adopted a
SWMP for the Basalt Creek Area, which inhibits the ability to effectively
evaluate and determine potential negative impacts of development or
changes to Land Use Codes in the Basalt Creek Area, nor effectively evaluate
and plan coordinated and integrated stormwater infrastructure, effectively
budget for major stormwater projects for the Basalt Creek Area, nor
integrate the Stormwater Plan into effective planning to prevent Natural
Hazards from flooding or landslides within an area with steep Canyon slopes.

e.      The Urban Renewal Task Force also discussed the City’s requirements to
protect and conserve various Natural Resources in the Basalt Creek Area, yet
the City’s adopted Natural Resource Maps - Maps 72-1 and 72-3 Significant
Natural Resource Map and the City’s Map of Protected Natural Resources
contain inadequate clear standardized memorialization of Goal #5 Resources
which exists in the Basalt Creek Area.  For example, these maps even lack
identification of 14+ acres of wetlands within the Basalt Creek Canyon which



is a major constraint for Land Use Planning in the Basalt Creek Area. 

Inadequate documentation within the City’s adopted Natural Resource Maps
has significant ramifications for safe and effective Land Use and
development due to potential stormwater flooding, erosion control issues,
derogation of tree canopy in wetlands & water quality concerns locally and
downstream within the Willamette Basin.  As City Codes reference these
maps for development and enforcement – the lack of inclusion and
memorialization of multiple Natural Resources known to exist in the Basalt
Creek Area within City’s Natural Resource/Protection Maps 72-1 and 72-3
should be of significant concern.

4.      While the City should be responsive to the needs of local businesses, it should not
be the goal of a local municipality to modify existing Land Use Plans to ensure the
speculative investments of developers will  be able to turn a profit in a short time
span.

Requests to change land use designations to benefit a large developer should not nullify
years of prior Land Use Planning at the possible expense of potential negative impacts to
quality-of-life elements for local employees and/or residents- including traffic
congestion, noise pollution, light pollution, air pollution, impacts upon Natural
Resources, or noxious odors from enclosed buildings generated by a manufacturing
business.

·        A large developer and their equally large Engineering and Consulting Firm should
have known of the existing zoning and developmental/construction limitations
through appropriate due diligence prior to purchase.  Apparently, many of the
properties within the Snitzer development proposal were purchased within the last
year or two, when the existing Land Use designations were already adopted.

·        During the Planning Commission Meeting, the Snitzer development consultant
commented their proposal:

o   Would have minimal negative traffic impact to the local residents-
- yet did not address the traffic impacts to SW Boones Ferry Road nor into
the at the I-5 and Elligsen Road (exit #286) interchange from their proposed
Land Use changes.

- and made comments regarding traffic flow in the Basalt Creek Area which
assumed the proposed Washington County Basalt Creek Parkway Extension
would be completed and functional.  This proposed major Washington
County transportation project is not fully designed nor is this project fully
funded.

o   Would have minimal negative impacts to Natural Resources due to the
distance from the Basalt Creek Canyon Area
- yet the scope of the proposed Land Use changes extend east of Grahams
Ferry Road with land  in close proximity to the Basalt Creek Canyon where
high valued habitat and wetlands may be downstream.

- the consultant did not provide information as to the extent of grading and
removal of rock, soil and habitat would need to be removed on land east of
SW Grahams Ferry Road to achieve building plats with grades appropriate
for proposed Land Use Changes.

5.      As resident property owners adjacent to the Basalt Creek Industrial area, we only
recently learned of the proposed Land Use Changes through other citizens.   The City’s
presentation to the Planning Commission on 1-19-23 included multiple comments about
inclusion of Stakeholders within this Land Use process and identified various prior
meetings with Stakeholders. It is unknown how or when the City selected the members
to represent the Stakeholder Group.   The members or composition of the Stakeholder



group was not identified during the 1-19-23 presentation, nor is it clear the proportion
of developers vs. Basalt Creek property owners who actually live on the surrounding
lands within the Stakeholder Group.  The large numbers of acres within the scope of the
proposals are significant, and should be considered a major Land Use Action and for
which the City’s outreach and Citizen Involvement should be representatively large.

If the City’s intent was to be inclusive within Public Outreach and to effectively meet
the State’s required Citizen Involvement goals, as property owners directly adjacent
to the proposed Land Use changes, we were not contacted for input, nor notified of
Public Meetings regarding the potential land use changes to the adjacent to our
property.  The list of Public Notice of addresses the City sent Notices of Public
Meetings regarding the proposed Land Use Changes (which was included within the
Informational Packet for this meeting) did not include property owners off of SW
Boones Ferry Road- although many of these properties, like ours borders on the
eastern edge of the lands which would undergo Land Use Changes.  Our properties
being adjacent properties--are obviously within feet of the lands under consideration
for these proposed Land Use changes which may result in indirect impacts to our
properties.

The City has our contact information. We have been very active in seeking and
participating in Citizen Involvement opportunities in the development of any and all
Land Use projects within the Basalt Creek Area being conducted by the City. 

This is not the first-time local Basalt Creek residential property owners in the
unincorporated Washington County, who are not absentee landlords but actually
live on their property and may feel the impact of the proposed Land Use Actions. 
We have been marginalized from participation in all phases of proposed Land Use
Actions impacting the Basalt Creek area… The City and the Planning Commission has
been notified for years that the City’s existing Citizen Involvement Program for Land
Use Actions-----, excludes Washington County Basalt Creek property owners from
membership within the City’s “CIO’s” which is the City’s stated “Citizen Involvement
Program” (Oregon Land Use Planning Goal #1 for Citizen Involvement OAR 660-015-
0000(1) . 

As the City of Tualatin also states the Tualatin Planning Commission is the City’s
identified “CCI” and fulfills the Goals #1 Requirements per OAR 660-015-0000(1),
there is concern that the Tualatin Planning Commission during the 1-19-23 meeting
did not seek information on the types of Public Outreach being conducted, or inquire
as to the composition of the Stakeholder Group the City has selected to utilize and
engage in the development of proposed Land Use Code Changes--- to ensure all
citizens are encouraged and able to participate in all phases of the development of
Land Use Actions in the Basalt Creek Area.

 

Prior to entertaining the desires of various developers to reduce planned Land Use
limitations in order they may more easily and quickly develop their financial speculations,
the City of Tualatin should focus on their responsibilities to develop and ensure effective
Land Use Planning in the Basalt Creek Area.  

The City of Tualatin has already become a property owner of over 7 acres identified for
future park and Natural Area adjacent to the lands included in the proposed Land Use
Changes for future park use directly adjacent to the lands under consideration for Code
Changes.  The City has indicated the goal to obtain additional lands within the Central Basalt
Creek Area for more park uses.  

Rather than make large Land Use Changes in the Basalt Creek Area a few years after
adopting the Basalt Creek Comprehensive Plan, it would seem it would be in the best
interests of the City, Citizens and the environment to ensure the City has fully and



conscientiously completed mandated assessments and analysis of the Basalt Creek Area
which assist in the effective evaluation and successful planning of future development in the
Basalt Creek Area (i.e. #3d and #3e listed above)…. leading to effective comprehensive Land
Use Planning for the Basalt Creek to generate successful short- and long-term outcomes to
benefit all.

Due to the lack of a direct email address to the Tualatin Planning Commission, we request
the Planning Department forward this submission to the members of the Planning
Commission.

Respectfully submitted,
John and Grace Lucini



From: Chris McReynolds
To: Erin Engman
Cc: Steve Koper
Subject: Re: No High Rise Zone on Norwood; BCE Project
Date: Monday, January 23, 2023 10:54:03 AM
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Erin,

I also echo the City of Wilsonville's planning department sentiments and questions. 

The provided traffic impact study by the stakeholder is all speculation. The stakeholder also indicated the percentages of use/zones would vary.
In general truck traffic is also much different than conventional vehicles as you already know and will cause a compounding issue to the existing
traffic problems. 

Stakeholder speculation is based on the use of "Flex" space that is not really clearly defined. They cannot determine that trip generation will be
lower than an MP zone based on their assumptions. 

If you take the peak trip traffic shown here this would exceed Tualatin allotment per Cindy's statements. 

This trip distribution is speculative. 

I agree with Cindy's comments. 
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"TDC 32.020. - Procedures for Review of Multiple Applications.

‘Muliple appliations proccssed individualy require the filing of scparate applicaions or cach
Land e+ el spplication il be separately reviewed according o the applicable
procedure type and processed sequentially s ollows:

) Applications with the highest numbered procedure type must be processed frst;

@ Applications specifically referenced clsewhere in the TDC a8 o the particular order
st be processed in thatorder; and

(®  Where one land use applicaton is dependent on the approval of
applcation, the 1and use application upon which the other s dependent must be
processed firs (e.g, 4 conditional use permit is subject (o priot approval before
architeetural eview).

sher and use





Excerpt of Table 32-1—Applications Types and Revicw Procedures

Pre-
Procedure  Decision  Appeal  Application
Type  Body Body* Conference

Neighborhood/  Applicabl
Developer M Code
Required  Chapter

Application/Ac

Required

ToC y ™C
8 cc | wma | ve Yes e
Architectoral Review
m arB | cc Yes Yes
o | Gireuie . T™CCh
1 om | G No No. <
« Partitons (limited - - ™CCh
land use) " | C ¥ X 3%
Map or Text N
c nC
v cc | A | ve Yes -
* City Council (C0Js Plaaniag Commission (PC); Archirectura] Review Bowrd (ARE); Ciy Manager or
designce (CM); Land Use Bosrd of Appesls (LUBA).

Response: s described in Table 32-1,  Partition application is subject to a Type Il procedure and
the City Manager is the decision-making body. As discussed above in the Executive
Summary, Annexation and Map/Text Amendment applications are being submitted
concurrent with this Partition application and wil be processed separately. Planned
future improvements are anticipated to be reviewed with separate Architectural Review
applications.
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Transportation Review of Flex Industrial

» Transportation Impacts

» Peak Hour Trip Comparison of Scenario C
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Transportation Review of Flex Industrial

» Transportation Impacts s '-/

» Trip Distribution
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

I'm following up on tonight’s open house.

| had some questions, but hesitated to ask. | thought they might be too specific or technical for the
audience and that it would be best to email you directly.
Here are some that came to mind during the presentation:

* Have you considered a form-based code for this area, such as Wilsonville has in the Coffee
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

-Chris

On Mon, Jan 23, 2023 at 10:26 AM Erin Engman <eengman@tualatin.gov> wrote:

Hi Chris-

Thank you for your testimony and follow up comments.

Hope you had a good weekend,

Erin Engman

Senior Planner

City of Tualatin | Planning Division

503.691.3024 | www.tualatinoregon.gov

From: Chris McReynolds <chris.mcreynolds1@gmail.com> 
Sent: Friday, January 20, 2023 7:16 AM
To: Steve Koper <skoper@tualatin.gov>
Cc: Sherilyn Lombos <slombos@tualatin.gov>; Ext - Planning <Planning@tualatin.gov>; Catherine Holland <tualatincio@gmail.com>; Nicole J. Morris
<NMorris@tualatin.gov>; Megan George <mgeorge@tualatin.gov>; Keith Leonard <kleonard@tualatin.gov>; Betsy Ruef <bruef@tualatin.gov>; Teresa
Ridgley <tridgley@tualatin.gov>; Frank Bubenik <fbubenik@tualatin.gov>; Maria Reyes <mreyes@tualatin.gov>; Christen Sacco <csacco@tualatin.gov>;
Bridget Brooks <bbrooks@tualatin.gov>; Cyndy Hillier <chillier@tualatin.gov>; Nancy Grimes <ngrimes@tualatin.gov>; Valerie Pratt
<vpratt@tualatin.gov>; Kim McMillan <kmcmillan@tualatin.gov>; Madeleine Nelson <mnelson@tualatin.gov>; Erin Engman <eengman@tualatin.gov>;
Cody Field <cfield@tualatin.gov>; Octavio Gonzalez <ogonzalez@tualatin.gov>; Holly Goodman <holly@tualatinlife.com>; mike@tualatinlife.com;
mmiller@pamplinmedia.com; amesh@wweek.com
Subject: Re: No High Rise Zone on Norwood
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mailto:mmiller@pamplinmedia.com
mailto:amesh@wweek.com


Dear Tualatin Planning Department Members, Planning Commission, City Council Members, and Mayor Frank Bubenik;

After attending the planning commission meeting yesterday regarding the land use changes for the Basalt Creek MP zone, it saddens me to see 
that when a developer flashes money, individuals in the planning department gush at the first opportunity and are willing to change code 
language to make it happen. I hope the commission and council really think about my testimony on record. As commissioner Bachhuber 
mentioned, why accept the first development plan? The land is extremely valuable. During the meeting the commission even indicated the 
immense challenges with traffic, environment and local residents.

I also want to remind everyone of all the housing projects that have already been approved. Please slow down and address the obvious 
concerns we all see in this city. Please do not white wash them for bullying developers. There will always be an opportunity. The Basalt Creek 
Urban renewal plan is a 20-year plan, not a today plan…

Council, please do not let developers do the same on Norwood Rd. Do not let them bully you into a zone change just because they have money. 
As I said before, do not let developers run our city.

Say no to a plan/text amendment change on Norwood Rd.

Sincerely,

-Chris McReynolds



    
 
 
27 February 2023 
 
City of Tualatin 
Attn: Mayor and City Council 
18880 SW Martinazzi Avenue 
Tualatin, Oregon 97062 
 
Dear Mayor and Councilors: 
 
The Tualatin Chamber of Commerce, its Board of Directors and Business Advocacy Council respectfully 
submit this letter in support of the City Planning Department’s submission of Stakeholder Scenario C, 
recommended by the City Planning Commission, for the development of the Basalt Creek Employment 
Zone (BCEZ). 
 
We strongly urge the City to recognize the need for flexibility in considering allowed uses for this new 
industrial/commercial area. We are very aware of the shortage of available wholesale and warehouse 
space currently in Tualatin. We hear from our members of the frustrations of not being able to build, find 
space or expand their businesses and the BCEZ, especially under Stakeholder Scenario C, would alleviate 
most of those issues.  
 
We also appreciate that a private developer is willing to come into Tualatin and invest in our community 
as outlined thus saving the City important dollars that can be used elsewhere for other projects and 
planned urban redevelopment. In this post Covid era, it is important to plan to increase our ability to 
provide industrial/commercial space and job opportunities to continue to keep Tualatin as a viable and 
attractive business market.  
 
As a business member organization and partner in continuing to enhance the quality of doing business in 
Tualatin, we thank you for this opportunity to provide testimony in support of Stakeholder Scenario C. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Anneleah Jaxen    Skip Stanaway   Susan Noack 
CEO     Chair    Chair 
Tualatin Chamber of Commerce  Board of Directors  Business Advocacy Council 
 
 

        

 











 

 

10220 SW Nimbus Ave, Suite K-12 Tigard, Oregon 97223                
www.WestsideAlliance.org 

  

City of Tualatin 

Attn: City Councilors  

18880 SW Martinazzi Avenue 

Tualatin OR 97062 

 

Dear Councilors, 
 
Thank you allowing me to submit this testimony as a stakeholder in support of the 
code update allowing for more flexible industrial space in the Basalt Creek 
Employment area (Scenario C). I submit this testimony on behalf of the members of 
Westside Economic Alliance (WEA) and stakeholders. We are a member-based 
association that advocates for a healthy economy on the Westside of the metro 
Portland region. We represent nearly 200 organizations who employ thousands of 
workers.  
 
Our membership brings together large corporations like Intel, Comcast, PGE and NW 
Natural, major hospitals systems including Kaiser, Legacy, Providence and OHSU as 
well as banks, property management companies, developers, engineering firms, and 
more. In addition to our private sector members, we are unique in also representing 
public sector members including all thirteen cities in Washington County plus West 
Linn, as well both Washington and Clackamas counties are members. We represent 
special districts including fire and rescue, parks and recreation, water and school 
districts. Finally, we have non-profit members who provide direct services from 
mental health to substance use disorder to housing development throughout the 
region. 
 

WEA support the city’s effort to update the Basalt Creek Industrial District 

zone for the Basalt Creek industrial area to allow more flexibility in allowed 

uses, specifically allowing for wholesale uses and warehouse uses in addition 

to manufacturing uses. Specifically, warehousing and wholesale sales to be in 

combination up to 70% of the building square footage. This change is 

important to address the shortage of available space and the buildable 

industrial land supply within the region, as demonstrated by the very low 

vacancy rates.  Our region has business demand that will create employment 

and tax revenue to benefit the broader economic engine of the Westside.   

We understand that there has been concern about increased job density and 

traffic impacts that might result from this shift to flexible industrial space. 

With the studies completed by the stakeholders and the City’s own 

consultant, it’s clear these concerns are misplaced. The job density and wages 

are comparable between manufacturing, warehouser and whose sale uses. As 

identified in both the City’s traffic study and the stakeholders’ traffic study, 

with the mix of uses, traffic is actually reduced. Additionally, city code 

already has provisions for setbacks, screening, landscaping and other similar 

issues raised. 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  
 

President Nina Carlson 
                  NW Natural 
 

Vice President Gina Cole 
                 Legacy Health 
 

Secretary Randy Ealy 
                  Portland General Electric 
 

Brantley Dettmer 
Kaiser Permanente 
 

Carly Riter 
Intel 
 

Ed Trompke 
Jordan Ramis, PC 
 

DIRECTORS 
 

 

Betty Atteberry 
 

Steve Barragar 
Harsch Investment Properties  
 

Jeff Borlaug 
Felton Properties, Inc. 
 

Sam Briggs 
PacTrust 
 

Jennifer Burrows 
Providence Health & Services 
 

Mimi Doukas 
AKS Engineering 
 

Rich Foley 
Umpqua Bank  
 

Mark Garber 
Pamplin Media 
 

Jason Green 
CBRE 
 

Damien Hall 
Dunn Carney 
 

Maria Halstead 
Washington Square 
 

Blake Hering 
Gantry 
 

John Howorth 
3J Consulting 
 

Jesse Levin 
StanCorp Mortgage 
 

Tim Parker 
Melvin Mark Companies 
 

Josh Shearer 
KG Investment Properties 
 

Commissioner Roy Rogers 
Washington County 
 

Councilor Juan Carlos Gonzalez 
Metro 
 

Councilor Edward Kimmi 
City of Beaverton  
 

Mayor Steve Callaway 
City of Hillsboro 
 

Mayor Heidi Lueb 
City of Tigard 
 
Mayor Frank Bubenik  
City of Tualatin 
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Westside Economic Alliance believes we need to identify and support smart investments that grow our 

regional in thoughtful and sustainable ways.  We believe this code change will allow for increased 

employment opportunities in an urban area by encouraging private investment, providing more 

funding to the Urban Renewal Area over the long term.  

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this testimony. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Elizabeth Mazzara Myers, Executive Director 
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Steve Koper

From: Ryan Schera <ryans@schnitzerproperties.com>
Sent: Friday, November 18, 2022 4:52 PM
To: Steve Koper
Cc: Stu Peterson; Erin Engman
Subject: RE: Basalt Creek Employment potential code changes
Attachments: Draft Code - Stakeholder Comments.docx

Importance: High

 
Steve, 
 
Thank you for the follow up and consideration on the schedule and draft code revisions per our last 
conversation. We acknowledge the project intent and directive as you stated below and are supportive of this 
code update effort and of a broader code update project in the future. With that said, our goal is to get to an 
updated BCE zone that we can develop to and can meet your goals and our preference is to address the BCE 
update fully now rather than partially.  
 
Per your request, below we have provided our initial feedback to your questions and latest revisions: 
 

 Machine Shops and Metal Fabrication: We agree with your changes to remove “machine shop” as a 
prohibited light manufacturing use and to add metal fabrication under heavy manufacturing. Machine 
shops and metal fabrication are such an integral function of many manufacturers, and we agree 
conducting these uses indoors is appropriate. To provide a little more clarification we have provided 
draft definitions for both machine shops and metal fabrication (see attached). 

 Further refine or limit the uses listed in the “heavy manufacturing”: The current description is very 
specific. We would propose going with a general description combined with specific prohibitions of 
undesirable uses (see below and attached).  

 Environmental impacts due to what they produce and/or noise/glare/vibration impacts even when 
conducted in a building: The existing code under Chapter 63 in combination with the proposed 
requirements for sound barrier construction and landscape buffers adjacent to residential uses in the 
draft BCE should address most of the concerns regarding impacts. We would propose reiterating 
compliance with Chapter 63 in the BCE code section (see attached). 

 Wholesale sales uses are not very job dense and do not lend themselves to high AV buildings: We 
have commissioned a study to analyze the economic impact to the Basalt Creek URA by introducing 
wholesale sales and warehousing uses in conjunction with manufacturing versus light manufacturing 
only as outlined in the previous BCE draft presented to the PC.  

The preliminary findings are: 

o There are no compromises with regard to wages or employment density. Flex industrial space is 
forecasted to provide employment equal to or better than the 20 jobs per acre identified in the 
Basalt Creek Concept Plan.  Modern flex industrial parks offer a high density of employment 
through offering a mix of spaces suitable for abroad range of light industrial, office, wholesale, 
warehousing, and related sectors. 
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o Total TIF revenue to the URA of $57.6M by including wholesale sales and warehousing vs. 
$38.0M for light manufacturing only (BCE draft presented to PC). 

o Once the study is complete will be provide you a copy. 

 Wholesale Sales uses: We agree, the example you show below is very limited. The complication seems 
to be the extreme limitation. Being this is an employment zone slightly broadening the types of 
wholesale uses (see below) would open up more opportunities to more businesses in that sector and 
would provide a mix of employers. 

 Warehousing & distribution limitation: We can’t agree to a per building limitation. This would create 
too much of a hinderance to leasing. Flex space doesn’t lease in predetermined amounts of square 
footage by use (that would make it inflexible). Flex space leases with the demand of uses in the 
market. We would also lose the flexibility to place similar uses in a single building or area of the site. By 
utilizing a percentage % of use for the entire development we can be flexible and lease as space 
becomes available while still not exceeding the limitation. We also will need the ability to request a 
conditional use for exceeding the limitation if market trends change or if a high‐profile tenant were to 
come along. We also will require the initial limitation to be a minimum of 35%. This is a huge risk to us 
with the potential of having our buildings 30% vacant if a manufacturing use never came along. 

 Wholesale Sales limitation: We can’t agree to a per building limitation. This would create too much of 
a hinderance to leasing. Flex space doesn’t lease in predetermined amounts of square footage by use 
(that would make it inflexible). Flex space leases with the demand of uses in the market. We would 
also lose the flexibility to place similar uses in a single building or area of the site. By utilizing a 
percentage % of use for the entire development we can be flexible and lease as space becomes 
available while still not exceeding the limitation. We also will need the ability to request a conditional 
use for exceeding the limitation. We also will require the initial limitation to be a minimum of 35%. This 
is a huge risk to us with the potential of having our buildings 30% vacant if a manufacturing use never 
came along. 

 
 
 
 

INDUSTRIAL USE CATEGORIES 

Heavy Manufacturing  P (L)  Advanced manufacturing uses limited to: 

• Casting or fabrication of metals, including 
electroplating. 

• Manufacture, assembly, processing, or packaging 
of the following types of products: batteries; 
bicycles; boilers; bottles; brick, tile or terra cotta; 
cans; chainsaws; dryers; electric generators; electric 
motors; electric transformers; engines, larger 
gasoline or diesel; freezers; heating and cooling 
equipment; industrial gases, excluding chlorine; 
ladders; lawnmowers; manufactured dwellings; 
marine pleasure craft; motor vehicles; paint; pet 
food; prefabricated building or structural members 
for buildings; sashes and doors; signs and display 
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structures; refrigerators; rototillers; vending 
machines; washing machines; and windows. 

• Manufacturing, processing, fabrication, 
packaging, or assembly of goods. Natural, man‐
made, raw, secondary, or partially completed 
materials may be used. Products may be finished or 
semi‐finished and are generally made for the 
wholesale market, for transfer to other plants, or to 
order for firms or consumers. Goods are generally 
not displayed or sold on site, but if so, they are a 
subordinate part of sales. Relatively few customers 
come to the manufacturing site. 

• Other similar advanced manufacturing uses as 
determined by application of TDC 31.070. 
 
Prohibited uses include the manufacturing of: 
Batteries, glass, bricks, gasoline or diesel fuel, 
slaughterhouses, meat packing, 
feed lots and animal dipping, lumber mills, pulp and 
paper mills, concrete batching and asphalt mixing. 
 
Permitted uses subject to Chapter 63. 

Light Manufacturing   P (L)/C   Conditional uses limited to trade and industrial 
school or training center. Truck driving schools are 
prohibited 
All other uses Permitted outright except: 

 Machine shop; and 

 Building, heating, plumbing and electrical 
contractor's offices, with on‐site storage of 
equipment or materials. 
 

Permitted uses subject to Chapter 63. 

Warehouse and Freight 
Movement 

P (L)/C  Subject to TDC 65.210(4) and (5). 

Wholesale Sales  P (L)  Permitted uses subject to TDC 65.210(6) and limited 
to: 
  •  Sales of industrial products primarily sold 
wholesale to other industrial firms or industrial 
workers.    
  •  Sale or rental of machinery, equipment, building 
materials, special trade tools, welding supplies, 
machine parts, electrical supplies, janitorial supplies, 
restaurant equipment, and store fixtures; mail order 
houses; and wholesalers of food, clothing, parts, 
building or office hardware and office supplies.   
  •  Sale, lease, or rent of products primarily 
intended for industrial, institutional, or commercial 
businesses. Sales to the general public are limited as 
a result of the way in which the firm operates. 
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Products may be picked up on site or delivered to 
the customer. 

TDC 65.210. Additional Limitations on Uses. 

[…} 

(4) Warehouse and Freight Movement. Except as provided in TDC 65.210.5, all uses must be conducted wholly in 
conjunction with a Permitted light manufacturing use on the same lot, parcel or site, and facilitate the storage 
and distribution of goods produced on‐site.  

(a) Permitted Uses. Uses may not exceed more than 50% of the gross floor area of the Permitted light 
manufacturing use. 

(b) Conditional Uses. A conditional use permit is required for uses in excess of 200% of the gross floor area of the 
Permitted light manufacturing use. 

       (5) Warehouse and Freight Movement. 

(a) Permitted Uses. Warehouse and Freight Movement uses may not exceed the greater of 35% or 25,000 
square feet of the gross floor area with an individual building on a development site. Small sites under 9 
acres in size are exempt.   More than one building on a development site may have a Warehouse and 
Freight Movement use up to this limit. 

(b) Conditional Uses. A conditional use permit is required for uses in excess of 35% of the gross floor area of all 
buildings on a development site. 

(6) Wholesale Sales. 

(a) Permitted Uses. Limited Wholesale Sale uses may not exceed the greater of 35% or 25,000 square feet of 
the gross floor area with an individual building on a development site. Small sites under 9 acres in size are 
exempt.  More than one building on a development site may have a Warehouse and Freight Movement use 
up to this limit. 

(b) Conditional Uses. A conditional use permit is required for uses in excess of 35% of the gross floor area of all 
buildings on a development site. 

 
 
 
After you have had a chance to digest lets set up a time to talk.  
 
 
Thank you and have a good weekend. 
 

Ryan Schera 
AVP, Development 
Schnitzer Properties 
Formerly Harsch Investment Properties 

Phone 503.973.0258  Cell 503.327.3240 
Email RyanS@SchnitzerProperties.com 
Web www.SchnitzerProperties.com 
1121 SW Salmon Street • Portland, OR 97205 

 

From: Steve Koper <skoper@tualatin.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, November 10, 2022 3:38 PM 
To: Ryan Schera <ryans@schnitzerproperties.com> 
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Cc: Stu Peterson <stu@macadamforbes.com>; Erin Engman <eengman@tualatin.gov> 
Subject: RE: Basalt Creek Employment potential code changes 
 
[EXTERNAL] 
 
Hi Ryan, 
 
It was nice talking with you this past Monday. We agreed that we can push the discussion out to the Planning 
Commission’s January meeting (January 19th). Erin and I are happy to meet with you after you’ve had a chance to digest 
the below‐proposed changes. It would be most beneficial to all if you could provide us with any proposed changes you’d 
like us to consider in advance of our meeting. Please also feel free to give me a call if you’d like to chat. 
 
At a high level, I do want to reiterate that the project intent and directive of this code update is to make an incremental 
improvement to the existing MP zoning code and is not a total update of all of our industrial codes or definitions, many 
of which are entangled together. As expected, this project has “day‐lighted” several ways in which Tualatin’s industrial 
and commercial development code is sorely in need of a broad update. One of the goals for this project has, from day 
one, been to show our Council that we can accomplish a small‐scale update in order to serve as a “test case” in support 
of a broader code update. We hope that you will support this code update now and that you will also help to be a voice 
championing a broader code update project in the future.  
 
Below are a couple of potential tweaks to the code based on our conversation. We’ve removed “machine shop” as a 
prohibited light manufacturing use (making it outright permitted, but still as with all uses subject to the requirement 
that it be conducted indoors). Under heavy manufacturing, we’ve added metal fabrication as well as the list of heavy 
manufacturing uses that already exist in Chapter 39 which is a general‐use chapter that applies to all zones. 
 
It would be appreciated if you can help us further refine or limit the uses listed in the “heavy manufacturing”. The 
Planning Commission as well as a group of citizens I recently met with have expressed concern about being too broad 
with the uses that are allowed, particularly those that could have environmental impacts due to what they produce 
and/or noise/glare/vibration impacts even when conducted in a building. Council has previously shared those concerns 
(as you can see from the limited list of uses allowed currently in MP) So, while we are prepared to offer this to the 
Planning Commission as a supported modification, it is not necessarily one that will be accepted. 
 
We’ve also updated the warehousing & distribution limitation to be a per‐building limitation (rather than per site), 
which would allow multiple buildings with a warehouse tenant/us/component on a site up to the per‐building limit. 
 
In regard to our conversation about wholesale sales. We hear you that this is a desired land use. This is a trickier subject 
as it is prohibited or significantly limited in most zones. Not to mention it is harder to square against the job density and 
high AV goals of the existing policy documents. Here is an example of one of the more expansive allowances of this use 
(which is very limited): 
 

Wholesale Sales P/C (L) Permitted uses limited to: 
 • Sales of industrial hand tools, industrial supplies such as safety equipment and welding equipment, t
 • Sale, service and rental of construction and industrial equipment to contractors and industrial firms o
  
Conditional use required for wholesale sales of building materials and supplies 

 
The use is simply not allowed in MP or Manufacturing Business Park the latter of which is the other zone that is within 
the Basalt Urban Renewal district. Again, staff is concerned that many wholesale sales uses are not very job dense and 
do not lend themselves to high AV buildings, which is something we need to make the case for in order to meet our 
existing adopted policy documents as we justify uses, particularly ones that we add that were not previously allowed. As 
an example, the most recent stand‐alone wholesale sales use we approved was a conditional use and included about 
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4,000 square feet of building on a 5‐acre site. Clearly not job‐dense and not high AV compared to how much land it 
would have used. 
 
All that is to say, while we are not necessarily opposed to adding the use, the best way to justify the addition of the use, 
similar to warehousing & distribution would be to limit it. One obvious idea would be to simply allow it subject to the 
same limitation as warehousing & distribution. See below for a draft. This would allow wholesale sales as a tenant in a 
flex‐space building. 
 
 

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



7

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

(a) Permitted Uses. Warehouse and Freight Movement uses may not exceed the greater of 25% or 25,000 
square feet of the gross floor area with an individual building on a development site. More than one 
building on a development site may have a Warehouse and Freight Movement use up to this limit. 

(6) Wholesale Sales. 

(a) Permitted Uses. Limited Wholesale Sale uses may not exceed the greater of 25% or 25,000 square feet of the 
gross floor area with an individual building on a development site. More than one building on a development site 
may have a Limited Wholesale sale use up to this limit. 

 
Best, 
 
‐Steve 
 

Steve Koper, AICP 

Assistant Community Development Director 
City of Tualatin | Planning Division 
503.691.3028 | www.tualatinoregon.gov 

 
 

From: Steve Koper  
Sent: Friday, November 4, 2022 3:25 PM 
To: 'ryans@schnitzerproperties.com' <ryans@schnitzerproperties.com> 
Cc: 'Stu Peterson' <stu@macadamforbes.com>; Erin Engman <eengman@tualatin.gov> 
Subject: Basalt Creek Employment potential code changes 
 
Hi Ryan, 
 
This email is a follow‐up to staff’s recent meeting with Sherilyn, our City Manager, and Jonathan, our Economic 
Development Manager. 
 
What Sherilyn and Jonathan communicated to us was that when they met with you and Stu, they reiterated that the 
Council would be unlikely to support stand‐alone Warehousing and Distribution uses. Jonathan also brought to our 
attention the differences between the way the state economic development agency views advanced manufacturing as 
one use category versus how our development code differentiates manufacturing uses into “light” versus “heavy.” 
 
With that background and what Erin and I think we heard from our last group meeting, we drafted the below changes to 
the existing draft code, which we’d appreciate your input on. Drawing on our conversation with Sherilyn and Jonathan, 
we feel that these changes could be expressly supported by staff as being consistent with Planning Commission and 
Council feedback. At the same time, these changes would help to increase the flexibility we believe we heard a desire for
from the group. 
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The changes are in red. The addition of Heavy Manufacturing as a limited use would allow for metal fabrication as an 
advanced manufacturing use, which we believe aligns with what we heard at our meeting and from Jonathan. The 
addition to warehousing and distribution uses is based on the Wilsonville Commerce Center development. We feel that 
this configuration could still meet the jobs and employment density goals of the underlying plans, while meeting the 
demand for flex space. We also believe this would alleviate Planning Commission and Council’s concerns about having 
warehousing and distribution become a dominant use if standalone uses were allowed. 
 
As of now, we are still on track to present an update to the Planning Commission on November 17th. To reiterate, staff 
would be comfortable presenting a recommendation in support of these changes and make the case to the Planning 
Commission that these changes are consistent with community interest and the adopted plans. Please let us know by 
Friday, November 11th, if you have any feedback. 
 

INDUSTRIAL USE CATEGORIES 

Heavy Manufacturing  P (L)  Advanced manufacturing uses limited to: 

• Casting or fabrication of metals, including 
electroplating. 

• Other similar uses as determined by application of 
TDC 31.070. 

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
                (a) Permitted Uses. Uses may not exceed more than 25% of gross floor area on a single development site, up a 
maximum of 25,000 square feet. 
 
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

 
 


	Exhibit 6 - Public Comments
	Exhibit C5 - Public Comments
	Tim Neary
	Grace Lucini
	Chris McReynolds
	Exhibit C5 - Public Comments


	Exhibit 7 - Stakeholder Comments
	Chamber
	Exhibit 7 - Stakeholder Comments
	Schnitzer
	Macadam Forbes
	Westside Alliance
	Exhibit 7 - Stakeholder Comments



